
Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 1 

AGENDA 
CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SESSION 
TUESDAY 2011 

7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF AUGUST 15, 2011 REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. PETITIONS OF CITIZENS:  Ken Crow 
 
2. CARTS PUBLIC HEARING ON RURAL OPERATING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
 GRANT:  Phyllis Toler, CARTS Director 
 
3. TAX DEPARTMENT MATTERS:  Ronnie Antry, Tax Administrator 
 A. Tax Releases and Refunds 
 B. Settlement of 2010 Taxes 
 C. Charge to the Tax Collector 
 
4. EASTERN CAROLINA BEHAIORAL HEALTH FISCAL MONITORING 
 REPORT:  Roy Wilson, CEO; Leza Wainwright, COO and Joy Futrell,  
 Finance Officer 
 
5. RESOLUTIONS 
 A. Military Family of the Quarter 
 B. Sickle Cell Awareness Month 
 
6. BUDGET AMENDMENTS:  Rick Hemphill, Finance Director 
 
7. APPOINTMENTS 
 A. Agricultural Advisory Board (Deferred) 
 B. Firemen’s Relief Fund Board of Trustees (Deferred) 
 C. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (Deferred) 
 D. Criminal Justice Partnership Program ` 
 E. Regional Aging Advisory Committee 
 F. Upcoming Appointments:  October – December 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 2 

 
8. WATER DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 A. Approval of Minutes of August 15, 2011 
 B. Property Acquisition:  Jim Hicks 
 
9. COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  Jim Hicks 
 
10. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  Harold Blizzard 
 
11. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 
12. CLOSED SESSION 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 3 

      Presenter: Judge Ken Crow    
      Agenda Item No. 1     
      Board Action Required:    No     
 
 
 
 
 

PETITIONS OF CITIZENS:  KEN CROW 
 

Judge Ken Crow wishes to thank the County staff for their efforts during a recent 
baseball tournament. 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Action:  Receive information



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 4 

      Presenter: Phyllis Toler     
      Agenda Item No. 2     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    

 
 
 
 
 
 

CARTS PUBLIC HEARING ON RURAL OPERATING ASSISTANCE GRANT 
 

 
Attachment #2 is a copy of the FY 2012 Rural Operating Assistance Program, 
completed application for Operating Assistance FY 2012 Rural Operating Assistance 
Program (ROAP) Grant and 2011-2012 ROAP Allocations by North Carolina counties.  
The Public Hearing Notice and the Craven County/CARTS FY 2012 ROAP Application 
have been posted on the Craven County web page.   
 
Funds available to Craven County: 
 
Elderly Disabled Transportation Assistance Program (EDTAP)                     $85,015 
Employment (Dept of Social Services clients included)     $50,253 
Rural General Public (RGP)         $90,673 
Total Funding Available to Craven County     $225,941 
 
As part of the application package, Title VI Public Involvement Forms are available for 
the public to voluntarily complete.  Completed forms will be returned with the ROAP 
application.  
 
If approved by NCDOT/PTD this grant money will be utilized to fund transportation 
services provided by Craven Area Rural Transit System (C.A.R.T.S.).  During FY 2010-
2011 CARTS provided 41,640 one way passenger trips with Craven County ROAP 
funding. 
 
Completed application is due back to NCDOT/PTD no later than Friday, September 30, 
2011.  
 
By way of this Public Hearing and Craven County Commissioner’s meeting, CARTS is 
requesting approval to apply for the Craven County portion of the FY 2012 ROAP Grant.  
 

 
 

Board Action:  Receive public comment.  Following the public hearing, the Board 
will be requested to take action approving this application. 

 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 5 

      Presenter: Ronnie Antry     
      Agenda Item No. 3     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 

TAX DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

A. TAX RELEASES AND REFUNDS 
 
Craven County Tax Administrator, Ronnie Antry, will present the routine requests for tax 
releases and refunds contained in Attachment #3.A. for the Board’s approval. 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve tax releases and refunds 
 
B. SETTLEMENT OF 2010 TAXES 
 
Before being charged with the collection of the taxes for 2011, the settlement of the 
2010 taxes will be presented.  Copies of the settlement appear as Attachment #3.B. 
 
Pursuant to GS 105-373, it is requested that the Board accept this settlement and enter 
it into its minutes. 
 
Board Action:  Vote to accept settlement 
 
C. CHARGE TO THE TAX COLLECTOR 
 
The Board is requested to adopt and enter into its minutes the attached order that is 
required by NCGS 105-321(b), as is done at this time each year.  (See Attachment 
#3.C.) 
 
 
Board Action:  Vote to direct Tax Administrator to collect 2011 taxes 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 6 

      Presenters: Wilson, Wainwright, Futrell    
      Agenda Item No. 4     
      Board Action Required:    No     
      
 
 
 
 
 
 

EASTERN CAROLINA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH FISCAL MONITORING REPORT 
 

Roy Wilson, CEO; Leza Wainwright, COO; and Joy Futrell, Finance Officer will present 
the East Carolina Behavioral Health semi-annual report to the Board of Commissioners.  
Attachment # 4 is the Fiscal Monitoring Report that will be discussed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action:  Receive information 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 7 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 5     
      
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS 
 

A. MILITARY FAMILY OF THE QUARTER 
 
The Board received a received a request to adopt a resolution contained in Attachment 
#5.A. recognizing Sergeant Joshua J. Milhorn as Military Family of the Quarter. 
 
Board Action:  Consider adoption of resolution, and designate a Commissioner to 
present it at the luncheon being held on Thursday, September 8. 
 
B. SICKLE CELL AWARENESS MONTH 
 
At this time each year the Board has traditionally received a request from the Sickle Cell 
Disease Association for the observance of Sickle Cell Awareness Month in Craven 
County. 
 
 
Board Action:  Consider proclamation for approval 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 8 

      Presenter: Rick Hemphill     
      Agenda Item No. 6     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 

Craven County Finance Director, Rick Hemphill, will present the following budget 
amendments for the board’s approval. 
 
Amendments: Cooperative Extension/SHIIP – Senior Health Insurance 
Information Program received $ 3,722 in grant funds during FY ’11.  Of those receipts, $ 
1,716 remained unspent on June 30, 2011.  Those funds need to be carried over and 
budgeted for FY ’12. 
 
   Cooperative Extension/SHIIP – Senior Health Insurance 
Information Program was originally budgeted to receive $3,922 in grant funds for FY’12. 
The actual amount of funding was $4,606.  Need to budget the additional $684 
received. 
 
   Environmental Health/Healthy Homes – Program had unspent 
funds in the amount of $ 26,490 at the end of FY ’11.  Need to budget this carryover 
balance in FY ’12 for contract employee to instruct EPA required lead safety RRP class, 
to repair the XRF instrument and for other related expenses. 
 
   Health/BT Preparedness-Response Program – The amount 
awarded for the BT Preparedness/Response program was $4,308 less than the original 
budget of $56,582.  Need to adjust the budget to reflect the actual amount of the grant - 
$52,274. 
 
   Health/Diabetes – Program had unspent Public Health Foundation 
funds in the amount of $ 1,110 at the end of FY ’11.  Need to budget this carryover 
balance and $ 250 in State allocation to cover FY ’12 expenses. 
 
   CARTS/Transportation – The amount awarded to CARTS by 
HCCBG (Home and Community Care Block Grant) was greater than originally 
budgeted.  Need to increase revenue and expenditure by $5,200 to correctly reflect the 
$69,887 allocated for FY ‘12. 
    
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 9 

 
    
   CARTS/Transportation – Rural Operating Assistance Program 
(ROAP) funding for FY ‘12 is more than projected.  Need to budget a $35,441 increase 
in revenues and expenditures among Craven’s EDTAP (Elderly and Disabled 
Transportation Assistance Program), Employment and General Public Transportation 
programs.   
    
   DSS Mandated Public Assistance – Additional funding of       
$100,740 allocated to DSS for Crisis Intervention Program.  Funding is 100 % Federal 
requiring no County match.  
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendments   
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 10 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 7     
      Board Action Required:     Yes     

 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

Deferred Appointments 
 

A. Agricultural Advisory Board 
B. Firemen’s Relief Board of Trustees 
C. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 

 
September Appointments 
 

D. Criminal Justice Advisory Committee 
E. Regional Aging Advisory Committee 

 
Upcoming Appointments: October – December 
 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 11 

 
 
 
 
CURRENT DEFERRED APPOINTMENT(S): 
 
A. Agricultural Advisory Board      
 
AUTHORIZATION: Local Ordinance   
 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Administer provision of the Craven County Voluntary Agricultural  
   District Ordinance and perform other agricultural related tasks or  
   duties assigned by the Craven Count Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
9      (See qualifications) 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
1) resident of area Townships, who represent the following categories; 2) agricultural 
landowner; 3) actively and directly  involved in agricultural production on at least 10 
acres of farmland 4) special interest,  experience, or education in agriculture and/or 
rural land preservation     
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
TERM (S) Ending:  Patrick Pritchard (non-participation) 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: At the call of the Chairperson        
 
COMPENSATION: No X ; Yes   Specify:       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
   
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 12 

 
 
 
 
B. Firemen’s Relief Fund Board of Trustees    
 
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 58-84-30 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To safeguard firefighters in active service and dependent   
   members of their families from financial loss resulting from   
   sickness, injury or loss of life  suffered while in performance of his  
   or her duties as a firefighter. 
    
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
5 per department    2 appointed by Board of Commissioners; 2  
      appointed by the department; 1 appointed by  
      Commissioner of Insurance 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: As necessary 
 
TERM(S) ENDING: 
 
Pete Bradeson (Already serving as State appointee) 
 
 
 

 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 13 

 
 
 
 
C. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
 
AUTHORIZATION:  N.C.G.S. 147-33.66 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To assess the needs of juveniles in the community, evaluate the 
adequacy of resources available and develop or propose ways to address unmet needs. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:  TYPE: 
25 (maximum)    From among the following categories, or in  
      some instances, the designees of the specified 
      position: school superintendent, chief of police, 
      sheriff, district attorney, chief court counselor,  
      area mental health director, social services  
      director, county manager, substance abuse  
      professional, member of faith community,  
      county commissioner, person under the age of  
      21, juvenile defense attorney, chief district  
      court judge, member of the business   
      community, local health director, non-profit  
      representative, parks and recreation   
      representative, up to seven additional   
      members appointed by the Board of   
      Commissioners 
      
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
 
LENGTH OF TERMS:  2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:  2nd Monday of the month 12:30 p.m.        
 
TERM(S) ENDING: (See Attachment) 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Attachment #7.C. 
 
Remarks:      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 14 

 
 
SEPTEMBER APPOINTMENTS: 
 
NAME OF BOARD/COMMITTEE: Criminal Justice Advisory Board   
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S. 143B-273.10 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To participate in a planning process to develop a community 
based corrections plan for programs funded through the Criminal Justice Partnership 
Act   
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:    TYPE: 
10 (minimum)     See qualifications below 
       
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
The following categories must be represented to the extent possible: County 
Commissioners, County Manager, Superior Court judge, District Attorney, criminal 
defense attorney, public defender, County Sheriff, probation officer, City Chief of Police, 
community service coordinator, mental health, substance abuse, employment and 
training, community-based corrections or victims services, business community, crime 
victim      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS:3 Years 
TERM(S) EXPIRING: All 
MEETING SCHEDULE:Bi-monthly, second Tuesday        
 
NAME OF BOARD/COMMITTEE: Regional Aging Advisory Committee  
AUTHORIZATION:       
MISSION/FUNCTION: The committee advocates on behalf of the senior population of 
COG  Region P, and as advocates for seniors in their respective counties. It reviews 
and comments on  laws, policies, actions and programs that affect older adults.  
     
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
27      3 Representatives of each county in Region P 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
Interest in issues affecting the senior population; older adults who are participants in 
aging services, representatives of older adults, older minority individuals, nutrition 
project representatives, general public, local elected officials      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
TERM(S) EXPIRING: Gertha Williams (Appointed 2002) 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: First Monday of January, April, July and October, 10:00 a.m. 
      
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 15 

 
 
 
Upcoming Appointments: October – December 
 
October:  
Clean Sweep Committee (Felix Croom, Dave Gardner, Jamie Johnson, Ivett Jones,  
Jan Parker, Pat Sager, Tim Tabak, Thomas Wooten) 
Firemen’s Relief Fund Trustees (Jim Hines) 
Industrial Facilities Pollution Control Financing Authority (Dell Ipock, Gray Lancaster) 
Promise Place (Amy Currin, Rodney Currin, Rebecca McKenny, Sandy Perry) 
 
November: None 
 
December: Commissioners’ Appointments  
*Board of Equalization and Review (Grover Lancaster, Al Otto, Bill Pope, Jimmy Smith, 
Jerry Stapleford, Drew Willis) 
*This board does not have terms certain; however, an ending date is required for entry 
into the appointments database 
Health Board (James Jackson, Rosanne Leahy, Trey Paul, Reed Underhill) 
Havelock Library Board (Jacqueline Attaway) 
New Bern Library Board (Molly Ritter) 
Vanceboro Library Board (Dorothy Bryant) 
 
Reminder:  The Nursing Home and Adult Care Home Advisory Committees have met 
their minimal staffing requirements; however, additional appointees are welcome. 
 
 
Board Action:  Consider appointments 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 16 

      Presenter: Jim Hicks     
      Agenda Item No. 8     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 
 

WATER DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF AUGUST 15, 2011 MINUTES 
 
B. PROPERTY ACQUISITION 
 
Attachment #8.B. is an offer to purchase a tract of approximately 1.22 acres for well 
construction. 
 
Board Action:  Consider offer



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 17 

      Presenter: Jim Hicks     
      Agenda Item No. 9     
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 

Offer to Purchase Real Property (1206 Walt Bellamy Drive, New Bern; 
 Parcel ID# 8-011-182) 
 
The County has received an offer from Clovis, Inc. in the amount of $4,434.80 for this 
property, which is owned jointly with the City of New Bern (it was acquired as a result of 
a joint tax foreclosure).  The total taxes that were foreclosed on for this property, both 
County and City, were $4,434.80.  The tax value is $3,900. 
 
This sale was previously approved; however, the buyer was concerned about a 
potential title problem, and revoked its offer prior to the City of New Bern approving the 
same.  The title issue has been resolved, and the buyer desires to proceed with the 
purchase. 
 
Should the Board desire to accept this offer, then the property will then be advertised for 
upset bids in accordance with General Statutes.  Once no further upset bids are timely 
received, the County and City may accept or reject the final bid.  The City of New Bern 
has already approved the offer. 
 
 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 18 

      Presenter: Harold Blizzard     
      Agenda Item No. 10     
       
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 19 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 11     

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 



Agenda Date:    September 6, 2011   

 20 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 12     
  

 
 
 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Board will be requested to go into closed session pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318 
(a)(6) to discuss a personnel matter. 



Attachment #2. 

Application for Transportation Operating Assistance 

F¥2011 Rural Operating Assistance Program Funds 

Name of AIIJllicant(Count~) Craven County 
.. 

Cm,mty Manager Harold Blizzard 

County 11aaagc(s Email Address hblizzard@cravencountync.gov 

Count~· Finance Officer Rick Hemphill 
-~·-

·. ·.· 

, CFO',;> Email Addrei!s rhemphill(il)cravencollll1ync.gov 
··~~-·--

·•· CFO'_s Phmh: Numf>t:r 252-636.()603 

Person (O!llllleting tltis Phyllis Toler Amllication 
Pet':Wn·~ Jo)b Tide Craven Area Rural Transit System Director 

Pcr~wn · s Email Address ptoler@cravencountync.gov 

P~·sotf s Phmre Nm.nb.:r 252-636-4917 

Community TranS!l.ortation Craven Area Rural Transit System s,·stem 
Name ofTra)mit Conti«-1 Person Phyllis Toler 

Transit Coillact Person's E:rrwiJ :\ddr"srt ""v 

Application Completed by: --------;c---;------
Signature 

Date: 

I certify that the content of this allplication is comJllete and accurately describes the county's administration of 
the ROAP Program, and the use of the ROAP funds in accordance with applicable state guidelines. 

County Manager: Date: 

County Finance Officer: Date: __ _ 

Application Instructions 

County officials should read the ROAP Program State Management Plan which contains guidance on the 
administration of the ROAP Program and information about the preparation of grant applications. 

• The application must be completed by an official ofthc county or his/her designee. 
• Click on the gray rectangle and type each answer. If needed, the text will automatically wrap to the 

next row. The answer may wrap to the next page if necessary, 
• Some questions require the applicant to send more information, and/or copies of pages from a plan with 

the application. If the county wishes to explain their response te any questions or provide more 
infommtion, the county may include additional pages "~til this application form. 

• If there are questions regarding this application, contact the NCDOT-PTD Mobility Development 
Specialist assigned to the area served by the transit system. 

1 



FY20l2 ROAP P•·ogram Schedule 

Early Disbursement (33%) 
Application Deadline 
Proposed Second Disbursement (33%) 
Proposed Third Disbursement (34%) 

July 30, 20 II 
September 30, 20 II 
November 30, 20 II 
February 29,2012 

County's Management of ROAP Funds 

All counties are eligible to receive Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) funding from the State of 
North Carolina. As a recipient of ROAP funds, the county must implement administrative processes that will 
ensure the following: 

• ROAP funds are expended on needs identified through a public involvement and/or planning process. 
• ROAP funds are expended on eligible activities only. 
• Supporting documentation of expenditures is maintained. 
• Smvice recipients meet eligibility requirements and their eligibility is documented. 
• Trips and services funded with ROAP funding are monitored and evaluated throughout the period of perfonnance. 
• An accounting of trips, services and expenditures is provided in a semi-annual report to NCDOT. 
• ROAP funds received and expended are included in the local annual audit. 

'• Transpori~tion Ntt'ds ll:nd Publit lnvoh'enlmt in Funding:lkdslons Yes or No 

A Were the ten Transportation Needs and Ser\'ice Smwys completed BEFORE the county 
decided how to sub-allocate the ROAP funds'' 
IMPORTANT: {(tilt! Cot/Ill)' :wballocatesjimding to any other agencies limn the O//I.'S listed in the RD.·!P Yes 
State _\fgt Plan, tht>re will11eed to he a suney completed l~v that agency in addition to the ten required 
Slll'l'C:\'S. 

B. Did the county ask the Community Tmnsportation Advisory Board (TAB), which is affiliated 
with the community tmnsit system, to recommend how the ROAP funds should be sub- Yes 
allocated? 

C. Iu addition to the public hearing notice and the public hearing, were other outreach efforts 
conducted to inform the public about the availability ofROAP funds and to discuss Yes 
transportation needs BEFORE the county decided to sub-allocate the ROAP funds? 

D. Does the federally funded Community Transportation System opemting in the county have a 
Community Tmnsportation Service Plan (CTSP) or Community Tmnsportation Improvement 

Yes Plan (CTIP) that was developed in tile last five years or being completed at t11is time? 
Date of the plan: 2007 

--
E. Does your county have a Coordinated Public Tnmsit-Human Services Tmnsportation Plan 
(LCP) that provides a list of unmet tmnsportation needs and/or gaps in transportation services'/ Yes 
Date of the plan: 2009 

F. Does the county have other transportation plans tlmt address public transportation needs? 
No IMPORT ANT: If yes, a copy of these plans must be provided wid! the application. 

If yes_ list and describe these plans. N/A 

--

2 



G. How did the county decide who wonld receive the ROAP fimds'' List Hoe names of anyone who p;~rticipated in the 
decision to suballocate the ROAP tllnds and their role in the connnunity. 

Cm\·en Connt~· Management ream which consist of Count~· Manager-Harold Blizzard , County Assistant 
Manager-Jack Veil, County Finance Director-Rick Hcm111till make the decision which includes $5,500 going to 
Cra\·ell Cou11ty Wol'k First ami the balance going to CJ·a.-en Area Rural Transit S~·,iem wltkb is the Rel,oional 
TnmSJlortation System fo1· CraYcn, Jones and Pamlico and is ad,·crtiscd as such and is able to Jl•·o•·idc 
trans 10rtation at a chea •e•· rate than other jlro•idcrs, 

H. How did the county decide on the amount ofROAP funds to sub-allocate to a subrecipient'? 
Based on JlrC\·ious CXJICntUtures uf ROAP, $5~'100 of EMPL was allocated to Crawn County DeJiartment of 

Social Scr•·ice.~-Wmimrst Jlrogmm, all otberrcmainingfunds we•·e allocated to the Regional Transit s~·stcm of 
· Cmvcn Area Rm·al Tnmsit SYStem 
, -. ---- _ -_ _ ___ . J:\l~Wl\ianll~i'tt-ofRO . .\P-FUi. . 

Yes I I. Docs the county disburse/allocate ROAP funds to auy county governmental departments? 

hyes how does the countY ·tccouut for these funds within the couuh'··s accounting z--.s-te_t_n?c:---'--------l 
' ' ' . . . . 

Fmuls are allocated b~· Line Item Code in the Count~· Finance System which is located on the AS.tOO system. 

-· .. 
K. Does the county pass through auy ROAP funds to ageucies or organi7Jltions that are not 

No county governmental departments or ageucics? 
. ·-

L. If yes, does the county have a written agreement with tltese agencies that addresses the proper 
N/A use and accountability of these funds'? (Include a sample agreement witlt application) I 

M. ROAP funds cannot be used iilstead of using the existing tmnsportation funding au agencyor organizationreceiYes 
from any other ftmding source. If any of !be departments. agencies or org,1nizatious recciYing ROAP funding from the 
county get tmns1J01tation funding from other Fedemt State or LOC'Jl fm1ding sources. list tlluse ftmding progmms: 

Craven County DCJiilliment of Social Scn·iccs Wurl>first and CARTS are both tiCilllrtmcnts of Craven 
lAICal Go,·emmcnt. ' 

N. Do any subrecipicnts receive ROAP funds before any transportation services or trips arc 
No I 

provided, and rclllnd the unused portion at the end of the period of perfonnance? j 

.. 
0. Arc ROAP funds being deposited in an interest bearing account? Yes 

,. 

If no. then why aren't ROAP funds deposited in an interest bearing account'' 
1 
l 

P. What does the county do with the interest from the ROAP fimds" 
Interest funds Jlrmided additional CARTS 'l'ranS(lortation triJIS. 

·~~-~v-,. ·-"·-·- .. -
Q. Does the county provide any local funds for transportation operating assistance to any of the 

No i ROAP sub-recipients in addition to tlte state ROAP funds? 

I R Is supporting d~cumcntation maintained for all ROAP grant financial transactions for five 
" 

Yes · years? IMPORT ANT: Yes is tlte only correct wmwer. 

...... .. .· .· 1\lonlt<>ring."nd Ov"mglltn<SfiOD.'il>llili>tl .·· .. · ...... · 
• < > VeH~~;No, . __ 

S. Tite Finance Officer will be responsible for the oversight and evaluation of the tmnsportatiou 
Yes services provided with the ROAP Jimdlng? IMPORT ANT: Yes is the only correct answer. 

-l ~· "--·---· .. 

T Does tile cotmty require the subrecipients of ROAP fuuds to provide progress reports and 
Yes statistical data about the setvices and trips provided with ROAP funds'/ 

3 



r If progress reporis and/or OJlel'dling Sl,1tlStical rcpons are required by the county. how frequently arc these provided 
the county for evaluation? 

Montblv 
' . 
I V. ~-tlle.~unty require the subrecipicnts of~OAP funds to use the !nlllspormtion services of 
i the federally funded Community Transit System opemting in the connty? Yes 

·~ 
· .. · . · M<init~•iltg .n.J Onrsll!ht R<'i>Oltl!iblllll<s(wn't) .•... .... · .. ··. Yt-Stn'-Nu -· 

W. Are subrecipients ofROAP funds coordinating transponation services with other 
Yes subrecipients in the county therefore reducing any duplication of effort? 

' . · .. , >'.··,· · · ·. •· · • · .:.CC<>fllllobiJ;ty io Nonli eornllno Ta'l"'y•rs ••• 
. . · .... ·· .. · ...... --\'es'<U- No --

'' 

X. Is the method used to sub-allocate tltc ROAP funds fair and equitable? Open and transparent? Yes 

-·· ' 
,, ··-

Y. Is tlte county prepared to provide documctnationthat an eligible citizen was provided an 
Yes eligible service or trip on the billed date, by whatever conveyance, at Ute specified cost? 

Z. A semi-ammal ROAP Report must be completed and sent to NCDOT. Who will be designated to complete these 
reports in FY20 12'? owou.', til II!, empl<~ri!r} 

Ph~·llis Tole•-, CARTS Director, Crawn Count~· Local Govenuneut 
--·-.. '~----· 

.. ..~-.. ..... ~ ... -

Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance Program 

The Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance Program (EDTAP), originally enacted by legislation in the 
1989 Session of the North Carolina General Assembly (Article 2B, 136-44.27), provides operating assistance 
funds for the transportation of the state's elderly and disabled citizens .. This transportation assistance allows the 
elderly and disabled to reside for a longer period in tlteir homes, thereby enhancing their quality of life. 

What will be I he purposes of the tmusponatiou sef\·ices provided with EDTAP funds" tCiwcli a// that a ppM 

x Personal care IICtivities, medical appointments, pharmllCy pick-up, shopping, bill paying, meetings, classes, banking 
0 Job interviews, job fitir attendance, job readiness activities or training, GED dasscs 
0 Tram<portation to workplace 
0 Group field trips/tours to community ;-pe<;ial events (Federal charter regulations apply to transit) 
0 Overnight tripa to out-<>f-cotmty destinations (Federal charter regulations apply to transit) 
0 Hrmlan service agency appointments 
0 Fuel Assistance 

B. How will the tmilsportation sef\·ice be pro<·ided'' ;Check all that applFJ 

X Public Transportation System 
0 Private Provider 
0 Taxi Service 
0 Agency Staff Driver 
0 Vohmtcer Driver 

C.. Are any of the EDT AP sef\·iees you arc funding. listed as an unmet need or gap in sef\ .. icc in 
the Public Tmnsit-Human Sef\·iee Coordination Plan or any other transportation Jllan for your 
county'! lM_PORTANT: A copv rtr tilt' page(s)ji·om the plan thar di!i.,clihe th<! !lt!(1d gop 11111s1 be 
provided with tl1e application 

D. Does the federally funded Community Transit System operating in your county receive a 
sub-allocation of EDT AP funds'/ 

4 

Yes 



-·-· 

If yes, does the county dictate which agencies and organi7.ations will receive 
No transportation services with any of the EDT AP funds the trdnsit system receives? 

Etderly .W.d ))js.abkt) 'l'r-.ffisport.ation'Assistance Program Question.<J: (ci:m't) . Yeso~·No . 

Can the Cmmmmity Transit System use any of the EDT AP funds it receives to provide 
transportation for elderly and disabled citizens of the county who do not have a human Yes 
service agency or organization to pay for the service? 

If the transit system· s Community Transportation Scryicc Plan (CTSP) is less than six 
years old. docs it describe and e,·aluate the seiYices the transit system is proYiding for 

Yes 
the elderly and disabled? IMPORT ANT: A copy qfthe pagers) .fi·om the pltm tlwt descrihes 
these serrices must be prol'ided with the application J'u.l!.r' t! 1\· 7 

Does the CTSP recommend any new EDT AP funded seiYices for FY20 12'' 
IMPORTANT: A cop1·qj'rlu! pagets) fi"om the plan that describes til£' recommeuded sell' ices No 
must be provided m't/1 tl1e application. 

E. Will any of the subrecipients use their FY2012 EDTAP sub-allocation as matching funds for 
any of the folJowing programs? (.\farchiug.fimds.fhr operating assistance on(F.) 

5310 -Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities Program 
5311 -Non-urbanized Area Fonnula Program No 
5316- Job Access and Reverse Commute Program (JARC) 
5317 -New Freedom Progmm 

F. Will any of the subrecipients of EDTAP funds charge a fare for an EDTAP funded trip? No 
--------------- --

If yes, how much will the fare be? n/a 

If yes, how will the fare revenue be used? n/a 

G. Do any of the subrecipients of EDT AP funds restrict EDT AP funded services based on the 
No origin, timing or destination of the trip? 

H. Is there a process or policy for detennining when it is appropriate to transfer EDT AP funds 
from one sub-recipient to another to prevent there being unspent funds at the end of the period of Yes 
performance? 

·-

L EDT AP frmded services are expected to be provided throughout the entire year_ If the 
EDT AP funds are expended in less than a year, will the county provide county funds to prevent Yes 
the discontinuation of transportation services? 

Employment Transportation Assistance Program 

The Employment Transportation Assistance Program (EMPL) is intended to help DSS clients that tmnsitioned 
off Work First or TANF in the last 12 months, Workforce Development Program participants and/or the general 
public to travel to work, employment training and/or other employment related destinations_ 

5 



.. •• --lrm.Pto)..ntnt_T~~-.:.8PortatioD 'r.OOgrntn QlW$dooS '- · ·. .· ·.·.· > I·· Yesu1·:No 

A Wh~t will be the purposes of the transportation serdces proYided with EMPL funds'' rc 'heck a/lthar appil'i 

x Joh interview:;. job tflir tlitendance. joh re;:tdincs,-; nc1ivitics nr trmning, GED dass1..'S 
x Trans};ortatinn to \YOfkJl!ace (Rchedulcd hy the individual ouly, No ug:ency scheduled trips.) 
x Child\ren) of working parent transported to Child Care 
x Fuel Assistan<:e 
x Vdlldc Repairs 
x Pt.''r~mwi Car Insur.:HlCC 

. . . . Ein)OO)'tMid TtltnS~attcffl·fn.Jgp._.jt Qllt.stiuns (~n.'.t)' · · -~--. 
.·· .. ····· ... 1 < .· ""'~tNu. ••· 

B. How will the tmnsportation serYice be pro1·ided'' (Check all rlwt applyJ 

x Public Tmnsportalion System 
x Private Provider 
x Taxi Service 
0 Agency Sum Driver 
0 Volnn~ Driver 

lc Describe the eligibility criteria to be used in this count)· to determine who will b<i"pro\·ided EMPL funded !rips. 
C•·ayen County Dellar1ment of Social Sen'ices-Work First 
Cmven County rt>Sidents that m-e detennined eligible for Work First EmJIIoyment Sen·ices will recei1·e 
cmJllo~·ment funded assistance. The Social Worker will coDIJllete DSS eligibility screening and liJIJIIication 
and will indicate in nanati,·es Jlllrticipants that are detemained eligible. The Social Worked willt-eqnest for 
assistance of these fnnds mad document all info•·mation in senkes file. This sen·ice willlle monitored by the 
1n·ognun SnJien·isor and Social Worker. 

C1·ann Ar-ea Rural Transit System (C.A.R.T.S.) EMPL ritlcrs are charged a fee based on mileage. Funds 
are onh· used for riders that arc cmJIIo,·ed and destination l~ to/from cmJllonnent locations. 

D. Are any of tile EMPL services you are funding, listed as an mnnct need or gap in service in 
tile Public Transit-Hnman Service Coordination Plan or any other transportation plan for your No county'! IMPORT ANT: A copy of the page(s) from the plan that describe the need/gap must be 
provided with the application. 

- -· 
E. Doos the federally funded Community Transit System operating in your county receive a sub-

Yes allocation of EMPL funds? 
·---·~· - --

If yes, does the county dictate which agencies and organi7.alions will receive 
No transportation services with any of the EMPL funds the transit system rcceiYes? 

Can tbe Community Transit System use any of the EMPL funds it receives to provide 
transportation for citi7_ens in tlJe county who need transportation to a job or employment 

Yes related destitllltion and who do not have a human service agency or organization to pay 
for the service? 

·--· 
If the transit system's Community Transportation Service Plan (CTSP) is less than six 
years old, does it describe and evalnate the services file tmnsit system is providing for 

Yes the employed or unemployed? IMPORTANT: A copy <{the page(s) from the plan tlu:t 
describes these services must be provided with the application. Page 7 

Does the CTSP recommend any new EMPL funded services for FY20 12'1 
IMPORT ANT: A copy t:f the page(/;) from the plan that describes the recommended services No 
must be provided with the application. 

F. Will any of the subrccipients ofEMPL funds charge a fare for an EMPL funded trip? Yes 

-·-~ "-" . 

If yes, how much will the fmc be? CARTS- Based 011 mileage Craven County DSS-Work First No Fcc 
- --

If yes, how will the fare revenue be used? Fare revenue used to provide additional transportation 
services. 

~~·-··· -~· 

6 



G. Do any of the subrecipients ofEMPL funds restrict EMPL funded sen·ices based on the 
origin. liming or destination of the trip'' Riders are charged same fare as RGP riders. When No 
funds is spent funding source is switched to RGP. 

H. Is there a process or policy for determining when it is appropriate to transfer funds from one 
sub-recipient to another to prevent there being tmspent funds at the end of the period of Yes 
performance? 

I. Has the county transferred any EMPL funds to EDT AP or RGP in the last two years? No 

... Employm.ent TrailspOi'fation P1'0gnui1 Questions (con't) . Y~sot•No -

J. Will any of the subrecipients use their FY20 12 EMPL sub-allocation as matching funds for 
any of the following programs? rJ fatclling.fiwdsfor operating assistance 011~1'. J 

5310 -Elderly IndiYiduals and IndiYiduals with Disabilities Program 
No 5.) 11 - Non~urbanized Area Formula Program 

5316- Job Access and Rewrse Commute Program (JARC) 
5317 -New Freedom Program 

K. EMPL funded services are expected to be provided throughout the entire year. lftheEMPL 
funds are expended in less than a year, will the county provide county funds to prevent the Yes 
discontinuation of transportation services? 

. -

Rural General Public Program 

The Rural General Public Program assistance funds are intended to provide transportation services for 
individuals from the county who are not receiving transportation benefits from human service agencies or 
organizations. The county, in consultation with the Community Transportation System, must determine the 
RGP services to be provided with the formula RGP funds. 

·. Rm,:al Gi-neral Public Pt'Ogt<am Qu.<'sfioils . I Yes or No --

A. What will be the trip purposes of the transportation sen 'ices pro,·ided with RGP funds'' rCheck all rlwr applv! 

x Personal care activities. medical appointments. pharmacy pick-up. shopping. bill paying. meetings. classes. banking 
x Job interviews .. joh tl1ir attendance .. job readiness activities or training .. GED classes 
x Transportation to workplace (Scheduled by the individual only. No agency scheduled trips.) 
x Child(ren) of working parent t11msported to child care 
0 Group tield trips/tours to cmnmunity special events (Federal chm1er regulations apply to transit.) 
0 Overnight trips to out-of-county destinations (Federal charter regulations apply to transit.) 
x 1-Immm service agency appointments 
0 Fuel Assistance 

B. How will the transportation sen-icc be proYided? tCIIeck all rllar app~FJ 

X Public Tmnsportation System 
0 Private Provider 
0 Tnxi Service 
0 Volunteer Driver 

r--
C. Are any of the RGP funded services the tmnsit system will provide listed as an unmet need or 
gap in service in the Public Tr.msit-Human Service Coordination Plan or any other transportation 

No plan for your county? IMPORTANT: A copy of the page(s} from the plan that describe the need/gap 
must be provided with the application. 

7 

---



D. If the transit system ·s Community Transportation SerYice Plan ( CTSP) is less than six years 
old. does it describe and en1luate the general public seJYices the tmnsit system does in the county 
for citizens who need transportation but don't haYe a human sen·ice agency or organization to Yes 
pay for the serYice? JMPORT ANT: A copr qlrhe pagers) .fi'om the plan that de8cribes !lu!se sell'ices 

must be provided with the application. 5 ((· (i 

E. Does the CTSP recommend any new RGP funded serYices for FY2012'' 
IMPORTANT: A copl' qj'the pagets) ji-om the plan that describes tltr.>se se11'ict!s must be prorided lfith No 
!he application 

. . RQJ'id General Public PI'Ogram Questions {con't) Yeso•·No . 

F. Will RGP services be provided to citizens who need transportation but don't have a human 
Yes service agency or organi7.ation to pay for the service? 

G. Will any of the RGP funded services be restricted based on origin, timing or destination of 
No the trip to control the expenditure of funds overtime? 

H. Since the snbrecipient can only use RGP funds to pay for 90% of the cost of a trip, will the 
Community Tmnsit System use fare revenue to generate the local I 0% match requirement for Yes 
RGPfunds? 

If yes, how much will the fare be? Fares are based on miles 

If yes, how will the fare revenue be used? Fare revenue will be used to provide additional RGP trips. 

If no, describe the source of the required matching funds? nla 

I. Will RGP funded trips be coordinated with human service agency trips? Yes 

J How will the Community Transit System market the proposed RGP funded senkcs'' 
Ca11s has a marketing 11lan that includes bnt not limited to: bmebures, 110sters, news11311er adw•1isemcnt, 
attending communitY mectingiaeth·ities, Twitter, and web 11agc. 

K Will the Community Tmnsit System use any of their RGP sub-allocation as matching funds 
for any of the following programs? r.\farching.fimdsfhr operati11g assistance on~l') 

5310 -Elderly IndiYiduals and IndiYiduals with Disabilities Program 
No 531 J " Non"urbanized Area Formula Program 

5316- Job Access and Re,·erse Commute Program (JARC) 
5317- New Freedom Program 

L. Is any part of the county in an urbani7.ed area according to the 2000 census? No 

M. RGP funded services are expected to be provided throughout the entire year. If the RGP 
funds are expended in less than a year, will the county provide county funds to prevent the Yes 
discontinuation of transportation services? 

··-

8 



2011-2012 ROAP Allocations 

2011-2012 Allocations 



2011-2012 ROAP Allocations 

2011-2012 Allocations 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJEC'f •ro BOARD APPROVAL ON 09/06/20H 

TAXPAYER NAME 

ALBANO, CHARLES J & M SIMONE 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

ATLAN1'IC LAND & TIMBER OF 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

BELCHER, GLENDA L 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

ACCTii/TICKETI! 

0056423 2011-0000471 

0083881 2011-0001994 

0084261 2011-0003996 

BENNETT, BARBARA SMITH 0064679 2011-0004349 
CLERICAL ERROR-SENIOR EXCLUSION 

BLACKBURN, KENNY 0035316 2002-0004375 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2002 

BLACKBURN, KENNY 0035316 2003 0004374 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2003 

BLACKBURN, KENNY 0035316 2004-0004429 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2004 

BLACKBURN, KENNY 0035316 2005-0004579 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2005 

BLACKBURN, KENNY 0035316 2006~0004593 

DID NOT OWN l/l/2006 

BLACKBURN, KENNY 0035316 2007-0004721 
DID NOT OWN 1 l 2007 

BLACKBURN, KBNNY 0035316 2008-0004813 
DID NOT OWN 1/l/2008 

BLACKBURN, KENNY 0035316 2009-0004831 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2009 

BLACKBURN, KENNY 0035316 2010-0004508 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2010 

BROWN, LEROY F ET AL 0904100 2011-0007120 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

Attachment #3.A. 
AMOUNT 

550.4.3 

36.37 

24.82 

31.13 

73.96 

6S.62 

64.60 

61.23 

57.17 

58.56 

53.92 

49.70 

43.98 

58.14 



TAX8041' CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL UN 09/06/2011 

TAXPAYER NAME 

BRYAN, MICIU\EL BRANDON 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

ACCT#/'fiCKETft 

0078328 2011-0007443 

BURKE, JAMBS GRAHAM JR & NANCY 0005835 2011·0008107 
VALUN ADJUS'rMEN'r PER BILL OF SALE 

CANADY, FRANCIS F HRS 0084718 2011-0008778 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

CAUDLE, ROBERT JOSEPH 0087122 2011-0009898 
VALUE ADJUSTED PER BILL OF SALE 

CLARE, DONALD RAYMOND 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2011 

CLARK, CHRISTOPHER B & MARY 
RELEASED TO CARTERET COUNTY 

0056748 2011-0010765 

0073596 2011-0010905 

CLAUS, WILLIAM H IV 0054556 2011-0011042 
VALUE ADJUSTMENT PER WILDLIFE 

CLEVE, BILL 1356775 2011-0011114 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

COL!.,INS, JEROME 1418950 2010·0092625 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2010 

COLLINS, JEROME 1418950 2011-0011623 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2011 

CROSSON, RONNIE LEE II 
MIL-LES-ll/ECC-8/8/13 1\L 

DIXON, RUSSELL EDGAR 
VALUE CORRECTION 

DOUGLAS, WILLIE RAY 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

DUDLEY, RICHARD EARL 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

0083235 2011-0013215 

0085901 2011-0015641 

0019879 2011-0015915 

0030982 2011-0016294 

AMOUNT 

15.51 

43.91 

312.21 

180.26 

31.73 

65.58 

235.41 

8.67 

19.31 

16.24 

119.35 

29.53 

92.45 

347.56 

2 



TAX804!' CRAVEN COUNTY !'AGE 

CREDIT ME!40S SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 09/06/201l 

'J.'J\XPAYER NAME ACC'r# /TICKETff 

FAITH, JAMES W 0080801 2011·001820? 
HOME DESTROYED 2010/RELEASE-REBILL 

FIEDLER, KATHRYW MARIE 
DID NOT OWN 1/l/20ll 

GARCIA, ALEXANDER J 
CLERICAL ERROR CORRECTION 

GARDNER, GLORIA HARRIS 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

GNC INC 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

0069841 2011-0018677 

0087600 2011-0090173 

2562850 2011-0020765 

0037497 2011-0022181 

GRIFFIN, ROBERT SCO'rT 0046805 2011-0023356 
DOUBLE LISTED-SEE ACCT 2935130 

GROVER, CHARLES E & NORMA J 0012750 2011-0023520 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

HARRELL, VINCON DONT'E 0083270 2011-0025116 
RELEASED TO HERTFORD COUNTY 

HARRIS, DAVID M 0077986 2011-0025219 
CLERICAL ERROR 

HUMPHREY, W GRAY JR 0035712 2011·0028623 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

JONES, ANN W & KOLT a 0056123 2011-0030538 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

JONES, MARIE LANCASTER ET AL 0080579 2011-0030915 
MAPPING ERROR CORRECTION 

JONES, ROBERT 0051489 2011·0031021 
MAPPING ERROR CORRECTION 

JONES, ROBERT 0054489 2011-0031022 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

AMOUNT 

465.08 

45.07 

98.26 

16.68 

29.21 

29.92 

46.94 

lS. 77 

21.09 

21.78 

575.63 

383.60 

8,07 

12!1.73 

3 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDrl' MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 09/06/2011 

TAXPAYER NANE ACCT#/TICKETl! 

KEYES, MURL GRAY & JAMES EDWAR 0021475 2011-0031903 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2011 

KNIGHT, JOSEPH ARTHUR 0082737 2011-0032602 
DOUBLE BILLED FOR SAME BOAT 

KNOWLES, DENNIS 0082627 2011-0032646 
BOAT LOCATED ON MCAS CHERRY POINT 

LAMM, WILLIAM NATHAN 0079512 2011-0033287 
ADJUSTED VALUE PER WILDLIFE 

LEWIS, EDGAR ALLEN 0080594 2011-0034347 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

LEWIS, GAYNELLE TOLER 0086072 2011-0034366 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

LOCKLEAR, SARA BELL 0066375 2011-0035086 
CORRECTION SENIOR EXCLUSION 

MCGREGOR, PAUL T 0069816 2011-0038254 
BILLED LATE FEE IN ERROR 

NOLES, IRA D HRS 008?514 2011-0042934 
MOBILE HOME VACCANT-RELEASED RECYC. 

PAUL, ERIC A 0060896 2011-0044704 
BILLED LATE FEE IN ERROR 

PHANG, PHEAP KIRIRATH 0080354 2011-0045375 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

PHILLIPS, JOSEPH ASHLEY 5701700 2011-0045492 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

PHILLIPS, JOSEPH ASHLEY & SADI 0035178 2011-0045493 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

PURVIS, JOHN CHRISTOPHER 
RELEASED TO PITT COUNTY 

0085986 2011-0046981 

AMOONT 

95.52 

61.55 

18.38 

56.09 

247.55 

527.12 

194.56 

33.36 

36.00 

52.00 

500.96 

33.43 

65.81 

9.38 

4 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUN1'Y PAGE 
CREDIT MI'!MOS SUBJEC'f TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 09/06/2011 

TAXPAYER Nl\ME ACCTH/T!CKETil 

ROBERSON, KENNETH 0085970 2011-0048920 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

ROBERTS, BRENDA 0042118 2011-0048954 
SENIOR EXCLUSION ADJUSTED 

ROBERTS, SYLVIA A 0032504 2011-0049020 
APPAAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

ROWE, MARLENA 0077342 2011-0049707 
HOME VACANT SINCE 2008 

ROWE, STEVEN D & M!SCHELLE N 0074041 2011-0049735 
INCORRECT TOWNSHIP - RE-BILLING 

SHIELDS, MARY C ESTATE 0086019 2011-0051762 
APPAAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

SHRINERS HOSPITAL FOR CHILDREN 0074155 2011-0051842 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 84955 

TAYLOR, DAPHNE POWERS 7085252 2011-0055947 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

TEMPLE, JACKIE M & SALLY L 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

TYNDALL, ANTHONY D & VICTORIA 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

WAGAR, JACK D & ALICE RUTH 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2011 

WARDEN, RICHARD 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2011 

WARDEN, RICHARD 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2010 

WARDEN, RICHARD 
DID NOT OWN 1/l/2011 

7132325 2011-0056394 

0019146 2010-0052421 

0027429 2011-0059361 

0067780 2009-0059022 

0067780 2010-0053948 

0067780 2011-0059960 

AMOUNT 

98.92 

514.00 

32.64 

36.00 

59.83 

6fL 77 

117.49 

42.54 

224 .l3 

3,591.39 

181.30 

68.42 

55.01 

52.02 

5 



'l'AX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 6 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT 1'0 BOARD APPROVAL ON 09/06/2011 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKETll AMOUNT 

WAYLAND, CAROLYN KINNE EXECOTO 0082612 2011-0060334 910.92 

MAPPING ERROR CORRECTION 

viELLS, CHARLES & BARBARA 7648600 2011-0060638 162.02 
VALUE CORRECTION ADJUSTMENT 

WELLS, TIM I SR & JUNE W 7654750 2011-0060672 56.70 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

WETHERINGTON, EVELYN W 00444?4 2011-0090190 2,391.95 
DOUBLE LISTED-SEE ACCT 23537 

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY 0077964 2011-0061145 3.29 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY 7723399 2011-0061223 206.71 
APPRAISAL ERROR ~~RRECTION 

WILLIAMS, JIMMY LEE 8001415 2011-0062832 107.33 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

WILLIS, MAJOR B HRS 9067150 2011-0063238 278.57 
BILLED INCORRECT OWNER- RE-BILLED 

WILSON, OLEDA 0034140 2011-0063471 47.51 
DOUBLE BILLED MOBILE HOME-SAME ACCT 

WOOD, RAYMOND DARRELL JR ET AL 0048674 2011-0063875 85.36 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

80 -CREDIT MEMO(S) 15,949.7l 



TAXSOSP CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 

REFUNDS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 09/06/2011 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

CROW, KENNETH F 0061691 2010··0092672 382.54 
ORDERED By BOARD OF E & R 8-16-2011 

FIRST CITIZENS BANK 2310209 2006-0017721 982.91 
BUS. LOCATED ON BOARD CHERRY POINT 

FIRST CITIZENS BANK 2310209 2007-0018217 1,694.96 
BUS. LOCATED ON BOARD CHERRY POINT 

FIRST CITIZENS BANK 2310209 2008-0018665 1, 751.15 
BUS. LOCATED ON BOARD CHERRY POINT 

FIRST CITIZENS BANK 2310209 2009-0018704 1,982.33 
BUS. LOCATED ON BOARD CHERRY POINT 

FIRST CITIZENS BANK 2310209 2010-0017111 1,418.88 
BUS. LOCATED ON BOARD CHERRY POINT 

SASSER, BYRON & SASSER, TRAVIS 0072975 2010-0045423 2.88 
ORDERED BY BOARD OF E & R 8-16-2011 

STALLINGS, ROBERT L III 6833275 2010-0048561 338.38 
ORDERED BY BOARD OF E & R 8-16-2011 

WOODARD, ALAN V 8166301 2010-0098116 199.98 
ORDERED BY BOARD OF E & R 8-16-2011 

9 -REFUND (S) 8,754.01 



Attachment #3.B. 

September 6, 2011 

The settlement of the Craven County Tax Collector for the tax year 201 0 (Fiscal Year 
2010-2011) is listed below. The settlement should be approved by motion of the Board 
before the charge is made for the current year's taxes. 

CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

General Fund Original Levy 
Fire District Original Levy 

Add: 

Afterlists 
Additions 

Total Original Levy 

Plus Adjustments 

Less: 

Write-offs 
Adjustments 
Releases 

Total 

Net Levy 

Collected 

Uncollected as of June 30, 2011 

Percentage of 2010 taxes collected ------- 97.93 

Net taxable valuation -- $9,5 82,126,280 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

41,552,884.60 
1,584,942.67 

43,137,827.27 

5,280,621.20 
52,104.99 

-0-

48,470,553.46 

28,401.00 
61.12 

913 451.77 

47,528,639.57 

46,546,791.78 

981,847.79 



ANNUAL REPORT OF REAL PROPERTY, CERTIFIED VALUATION AND 
PERSONAL PROPERTY OTHER THAN REGISTERED MOTOR VEHICLES 

September 6, 20 II 

CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

General Fund Original Levy 
Fire District Original Levy 

Total Levy 

Add: 

Afterlists 
Plus Adjustments 
Additions 

Total 

Less: 

Writeoffs 
Adjustments 
Releases 

Net Levy 

Collected 

Uncollected as of June 30, 2011 

Percentage of2010 taxes collected ------- 98.55 

Net taxable valuation-- $8,866,370,201 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

37,437,162.82 
1,417,304.12 

38,854,466.94 

5,280,621.20 
-0-

51917.39 

44,187,005.53 

5,046.48 
61.12 

531,025.69 

43,650,872.24 

43,017,868.62 

633,003.62 



ANNUAL REPORT OF REGISTERED MOTOR VEHICLES 

September 6, 2011 

CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

General Fund Original Levy 
Fire District Original Levy 

Total Original Levy 

Add: 

Additions 
Plus Adjustments 

Less: 

Write-off's 
Adjustments 
Releases 

Total 

Net Levy 

Collected 

Uncollected as of June 30, 2011 

Percentage of2010 taxes collected ------- 91.00 

Net taxable valuation-- $715,756,079 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

4,115,721.78 
167,638.55 

4,283,360.33 

187.60 
-0-

4,283,547.93 

23,354.52 
-0-

382,426.08 

3,877,767.33 

3,528,923.16 

348,844.17 



Attachment #3.C. 

2011 CHARGE TO THE CRAVEN COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

TO THE TAX COLLECTOR OF THE COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect 
the taxes set forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Craven County 
Tax Collector and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you, in the 
amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set forth. Such taxes are 
hereby declared to be a first lien upon all real property of the respective 
taxpayers in the County of Craven, and this order shall be a full and 
sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell any 
real or personal property of such taxpayer, for and on account thereof, in 
accordance with law. 

Witness my hand and official seal, this 6th day of September 2011. 

Steve Tyson, Chairman 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 

Attest: 

Gwendolyn M. Bryan, Clerk 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 



Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities & Substance Abuse Services
Quarterly Fiscal Monitoring Report

 ea prog  East Carolina Behavioral Health Area Program
for the period ending: June 30, 2011
# of month in the fiscal year========> 12

(July = 1, August = 2, . . . , June = 12)

1. REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL
Basis of Accounting: Cash  (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

(check one) Accrual X PRIOR YEAR CURRENT YEAR
2009-2010 ACTUAL BALANCE ANNUALIZED

ITEM BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YR-TO-DATE (Col. 3-4) PERCENTAGE **
REVENUE
Client Fees -                      -                       
Medicaid - "Regular Fee-for-Service" 7,000,000           7,100,192           9,000,000           6,206,211           2,793,789           68.96%
Medicaid - CAP/MRDD 600,000              552,513              800,000              397,293              402,707              49.66%
Medicare -                      -                      -                       
Insurance -                      190                     -                      -                      -                      #DIV/0!
Other Local 359,600              536,368              319,622              506,752              (187,130)             158.55%
Appropriation of Fund Balance * 1,000,000           186,000              -                      186,000               

Total Local Funds 8,959,600           8,189,263           10,305,622         7,110,256           3,195,366           68.99%

County Appropriations (by county):
Beaufort County 173,599              173,599              173,599              173,599              -                      100.00%
Bertie County 49,390                49,390                49,390                49,390                -                      100.00%
Camden County 13,976                13,313                663                     95.26%
Chowan County 3,200                  4,232                  (1,032)                 132.25%
Craven County 272,629              276,138              274,827              276,638              (1,811)                 100.66%
Currituck County 63,100                66,762                (3,662)                 105.80%
Dare County 70,000                36,130                33,870                51.61%
Gates County 39,434                37,817                39,434                38,863                571                     98.55%
Hertford County 84,390                85,011                84,250                85,277                (1,027)                 101.22%
Hyde County 12,700                12,419                281                     97.79%
Jones County 31,268                29,079                23,597                23,362                235                     99.00%
Martin County 51,842                48,342                3,500                  93.25%
Northampton County 81,614                83,614                81,614                83,614                (2,000)                 102.45%
Pamlico County 39,194                35,184                35,293                35,907                (614)                    101.74%
Pasquotank County 58,300                59,810                (1,510)                 102.59%
Perquimanns County 16,045                15,804                241                     98.50%
Pitt County 747,050              754,752              608,000              606,811              1,189                  99.80%
Tyrrell County 10,006                9,906                  100                     99.00%
Washington County 16,000                16,000                -                      100.00%
Total County Funds 1,518,568           1,524,584           1,685,173           1,656,179           28,994                98.28%

Service Management Funds 5,635,408           5,782,980           7,550,143           7,189,228           360,915              95.22%
Service Delivery Funds 23,903,368         24,185,069         42,227,988         41,234,216         993,772              97.65%
All Other State/Federal Funds 2,703,795           2,316,856           1,384,388           1,344,334           40,054                97.11%

Total State and Federal Funds 32,242,571         32,284,905         51,162,519         49,767,778         1,394,741            

TOTAL REVENUE 42,720,739         41,998,752         63,153,314         58,534,213         4,619,101           92.69%

EXPENDITURES:
 

Service Management 5,868,542 5200598 8,154,986 7,393,979 761,007              90.67%
Directly Provided Services -                      -                       
Provider Payments 35,492,949         35,028,745         52,319,784         41,052,033         11,267,751         78.46%
All Other 1,359,248           959,796              2,679,044           2,201,723           477,321              82.18%

-                      
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 42,720,739         41,189,139         63,153,814         50,647,735         12,506,079         80.20%

CHANGE IN CASH BALANCE 809,613              7,886,478           

Beginning Unrestricted Fund Balance 9,140,358           

Current Estimated Unrestricted Fund Balance 21.40% 9,140,358           31.68% 20,004,516         
and percent of budgeted expenditures

* "Appropriation of Fund Balance" represents the Area Program Fund Balance that has been incorporated as part of the Approved Budget.  Actual Yr-To-Date
should reflect Fund Balance utilized to date and an explanation needs to be provided for the specific uses of fund. 
** annualized Revenue percentage less than 90% and Expenditure percentages greater than 110% must be explained on the attachment and submitted with the
Fiscal Monitoring Report

Receivables net of
2. CURRENT CASH POSITION: (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) Allowance for

OVER Uncollectible
30 DAYS 60 DAYS 90 DAYS 90 DAYS TOTAL Receivables

Accounts Payable (Accrual Method)  -                      1,791,624$         
Account Receivable (Accrual Method) -                      4,973,893$         

Current Cash in Bank 25,814,723         

3. SERVICE EXCEPTIONS: ( Provided Based on System Capability)

Services authorized but not billed

* We certify (a) this report to contain accurate and complete information, (b) explanations are provided for any expenditure item with an annualized expenditure rate greater then 1
and for any revenue item with an annualized receipt rate of less than 90%, and ( c ) a copy of this report has been provided to each county manager in the catchment area".

Area Director date Area Finance Officer date Area Board Chair date
CC:  County Manager for each county within the catchment area.



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
RECOGNIZING THE FAMILY  

OF SERGEANT JOSHUA J. MILHORN 
AS MILITARY FAMILY OF THE QUARTER 

 
 WHEREAS, Sergeant Joshua J. Milhorn is currently an active duty 
Marine stationed on Marine Corps Air Station Cherry Point, N.C., working with 
CNATTMARUNIT; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sgt. Milhorn shows extreme diligence in performing his 
duties as an Ordinance Instructor/Instructor Evaluator, by training, mentoring, 
and providing new accession Marines to the fleet, as well as being a Suicide 
Prevention Specialist for his unit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, he contributes much of his personal time as an active 
participant in community activities and services, accumulating over 70 volunteer 
hours coaching youth soccer, assisting in the Senior Games, Special Olympics, 
Knights of Columbus and with Park University; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sergeant Milhorn’s wife, Brittany Milhorn, also volunteers 
her time in the community coaching a youth soccer team; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Milhorn’s have a son, Nate, and two daughters, 
Madison and Isabella, ages, six, four and nine months. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CRAVEN 
COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS recognizes the family of Sergeant 
Joshua J. Milhorn for their significant contributions and generosity which have 
made a positive and lasting impact on the surrounding community. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE CRAVEN COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS congratulates them on being selected 
Military Family of the Quarter. 
 
 Adopted this 6th day of September, 2011. 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________ 
Chairman Steve Tyson    Gwendolyn M. Bryan 
Craven County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 



 
 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

 WHEREAS, sickle cell disease is an inherited blood disorder that causes pain, 
infection, disability, economic strain and even death among many ethnic groups; and 
 
 WHEREAS, approximately one out of every 294 African-American American 
North Carolinians is born with sickle cell disease, and one out of every 10 carries the 
sickle cell trait.  No cure for this disease exists, though treatment is available to help 
those with sickle cell disease lead more productive and rewarding lives; and 
 
 WHEREAS, since 1973, the North Carolina Sickle Cell Syndrome Program has 
provided quality services throughout the State, which includes screening of all newborns, 
general screening by request for the public, education, genetic counseling, medical 
expense reimbursement and social support for affected persons; and 
 
 WHEREAS, 2011 marks 101 years since the discovery and documentation of 
sickle cell disease by Dr. James B. Herrick, Professor of Medicine at Rush Medical 
College in Chicago in 1910; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS proclaims the month of September 2011, as 
 
  “SICKLE CELL AWARENESS MONTH” 
in Craven County and urges all citizens to recognize and support this observance. 
 
 Adopted this 6th day of September, 2011 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Chairman Steve Tyson 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 
 
_________________________________ 
Gwendolyn M. Bryan 
Clerk to the Board 



Attachment U?.C. 

Board of Commissioners 
Steve Tyson, Chai(man 
Lee Kyle Allen, Vice Chairman 
Scott C. Dacey 
Thomas F. Mark 

·--m McCabe 
fe Sampson, Jr. 

J<, .. aey S. Taylor 

Administrative Staff 
Harold Blizzard, County Manager 
JackVeit, Assistant Manager 
Gwendolyn M. Bryan, Clerk to the Board 
Rick HemphiJJ, Finance Director 
Joan Harrell, Human Resources Director 

MEMORANDUM: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Gwen Bryan, Clerk to the Board 

Sherry Riggs, JCPC Chairpersoff 

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Appointments 

August 8, 2011 

Administration Building 
406 Craven Street 

New Bem, NC 28560 
Fax 252-637-0526 

manager«kravencounty.com 

Commissioners 252-636-6601 
Manager 252-636-5600 
Finance 252-636-6603 

Human Resources 252-636-6602 

Following Is a list of Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) members whose appointments 
expired on June 30, 2011. Also shown Is the area In which they represent on the Council. The 
Council is requesting the following be re-appointed for a two-year term: 

Richard Bowers 
lillie Hayes 
Robert Keeter 
Jennifer Knight 
Scott Harrelson 
Mary Mallard 
Carol Mattocks 
Rudy Riggs 
Sherry Riggs 
Jackie Smith 
Cheryl Spencer 
Hollyanne Trombley 
Nancy Wells 

At-large 
At-large 
At-large 
Business Representative 
Health Director 
Chief Court Counselor 
At-large 
Sheriff/Designee 
County Manager/Designee 
District Attorney/Designee 
Chief District Court Judge/Designee 
Department of Social Services 
Mental Health Representative 

We have two additional vacancies to fill, the Chief of Police and a representative from the faith 
community. These will be presented for consideration as they become available. 



~!t~chment #8.B. 
NORTH CAROLINA 

OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT· VA CANT LAND 
CRAVEN COUNTY 

CRAVEN COUNTY, as Buyer, hereby offers to purchase and EDWARD B. ELLIS, JR. and wife VERONICA J. ELLIS, 
collectively as Seller, upon acceptance of said offer, agrees to sell and convey, all of that plot, piece or parcel of land described below 
(hereafter referred to as the "Property"), upon the following terms and conditions: 

I. REAL PROPERTY: Located near the City of Havelock, Township No. 6, Craven County, North Carolina, being known as and 
more particularly described as: See Exhibit" A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and consisting of approximately 
1.22 acres. Also being a portion of that lot bearing Tax Parcel Identification Number 6-214-020; subject to a survey by the Buyer, at 
Buyer's sole cost. 

NOTE: Governmental authority over taxes, zoning, school districts, utilities and mail delivery may differ from address shown. 
Subdivision Name: Nl A 
Plat Reference: Lot , Block or Section as shown on 
Plat Book or Slide ___ ,,.-- at Page(s) .... _ 
A portion of the property in Deed Reference: Book 2392, Page No. 923, Craven County Registry. 

2. PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price is $37,454.00 and shall be paid in U.S. Dollars. Should any check or other funds paid 
by Buyer be dishonored, for any reason, by the institution upon which the payment is drawn, Buyer shall have one (I) banking day 
after written notice to deliver good funds to the payee. In the event Buyer does not timely deliver good funds, the Seller shall have the 
right to terminate this contract upon written notice to the Buyer. The purchase price shall be paid as follows: 
(a) $2,000.00 EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT with this offer by CJ cash CJ personal check Cl bank check CJ certified check lEI 
other: Governmental Check, to be deposited and held in escrow by Sumrell, Sugg, Carmichael, Hicks & Hart, PA ("Escrow Agent") 
until the sale is closed, at which time it will be credited to Buyer, or until this contract is otherwise terminated. In the event: (I) this 
offer is not accepted; or (2) any of the conditions hereto are not satisfied, then all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer. In the 
event of breach of this contract by Seller, all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer upon Buyer's request, but such return shall not 
affect any other remedies available to Buyer for such breach. In the event of breach of this contract by Buyer, then all earnest monies 
shall be forfeited to Seller upon Seller's request, but such forfeiture shall not affect any other remedies available to Seller for such 
breach. 
(b) $0.00, (ADDITIONAL) EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT to be paid to Escrow Agent no later than 

NIA ·-·' 11ME BElJVG OF THE ESSENCE WITH REGARD TO SAID DATE. 
(c) $0.00, OPTION FEE in accordance with paragraph 13, Alternative 2, to be paid to Seller on the Effuctive Date as set forth in 

paragraph 22. (NOTE: If Alternative 2 applies, then do not insert $0, Nl A, or leave blank). 
(d) $0.00, BY ASSUMPTION of the unpaid principal balance and all obligations of Seller on the existing loan(s) se.cured by a deed 

of trust on the Property in accordance with the attached Loan Assumption Addendum. 
(e) $0.00, BY SELLER FINANCING in accordance with the attached Seller Financing Addendum. 
(I) $35,454.00, BALANCE of the purchase price in cash at Closing. 

3. LOAN CONDITION: 
(a} Loan. Intentionally deleted. 
(b) Loan Obligations: Intentionally deleted. 
(c) Inability to Obtain Loan Approval: Intentionally deleted. 

4, FLOOD HAZARD DISCLOSURE/CONDITION (Choose ONE of the following alternatives): 
CJ To the best of Seller's knowledge, the Property IS located partly or entirely within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

Buyer understands that it may be necessary to purchase flood insurance in order to obtain any loan secured by the Property from 
any federally regulated institution or a loan insured or guaranteed by an agency of the U.S. Government 

lEI To the best of Seller's knowledge, the Property IS NOT located partly or entirely within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 
If, following the Effective Date of this contract, it is determined that the Property is located partly or entirely within a designated 
Special Flood Ha7.ard Area according to the current FEMA flood map, or if this contract is subject to a Loan Condition and 
Buyer's lender requires Buyer to obtain flood insurance as a condition of making the Loan, then in either event Buyer shall have 
the right to terminate this contract upon written notice to Seller, and all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer. 

Pagel of5 

Buyer initials __ _ ___ Seller initials __ _ 

NC BAR ASSOCIATION - NC Bar Form No. 12 Revised 7/2007 © 712007 This standard form has been approved jointly by: 
North Carolina Bar Association- NC Bar Form No. 12 
North Carolina Association of Realtors®, Inc.- Standard Form 12~T 



5. OTHER CONDITIONS: (StateN/A in each blank that is not a condition to this contract.) 
(a) There must be no restriction, easement, zoning or other governmental regulation that would prevent the reasonable use of the 

Property for activities directly, and incidentally related to, the operation of a public water enterprise system. 
(b) The Property must be in substantially the same or better condition at Closing as on the date of this offer, reasonable wear and tear 

excepted. 
(c) The Property must appraise at a value equal to or exceeding the purchase price or, at the option of Buyer, this contract may be 

terminated and all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer. 
(d) All deeds of trust, liens and other charges against the Property, not assumed by Buyer, must be paid and satisfied by Seller prior to 

or at Closing such that cancellation may be promptly obtained following Closing. Seller shall remain obligated to obtain any such 
cancellations following Closing. 

(e) Title must be delivered at Closing by GENERAL WARRANTY DEED unless otherwise stated herein, and must be fee simple 
marketable and insurable title, free of all encumbrances except: ad valorem taxes for the current year (prorated through the date of 
Closing); utility easements and unviolated restrictive covenants that do not materially affect the value of the Property; and such 
other encumbrances as may be assumed or specifically approved by Buyer. The Property must have legal access to a public right 
of way. 

6. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: NOTE: For purposes of this agreement, a "confirmed" special assessment is defined as an 
assessment that has been approved by a governmental agency or an owners' association for the purpose(s) stated, whether or not it is 
fully payable at time of closing. A "pending" special assessment is defined as an assessment that is under formal consideration by a 
governing body. Seller warrants that there are no pending or confirmed governmental special assessments for sidewalk, paving, water, 
sewer, or other improvements on or adjoining the Property, and no pending or confirmed owners' association special assessments, 
except as follows (Insert "None" or the identification of such assessments, if any): None. 
Unless otherwise agreed, Seller shall pay all owners' association assessments and all governmental assessments confirmed through the 
time of Closing, if any, and Buyer shall take title subject to all pending assessments disclosed by Seller herein, if any. 

7. PRORATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS: Unless otherwise provided, the following items shall be prorated and either adjusted 
between the parties or paid at Closing: (a) Ad valorem taxes on real property for the current year, past year(s), and all deferred 
(rollback) taxes shall be paid for by Seller; (b) All late listing penalties, if any, shall be paid by Seller; (c) Rents, if any, for the 
Property shall be prorated through the date of Closing; (d) Owners' association dues and other like charges shall be prorated through 
the date of Closing. Seller represents that the regular owners' association dues, if any, are: N/A. Unless otherwise agreed, Buyer shall 
pay any fees required for obtaining account payment information on owners' association dues or assessments for payment or proration 
and any charge made by the owners' association in connection with the disposition of the Property to Buyer, including any transfer 
and/or document fee imposed by the owners' association. 

8. EXPENSES: Unless otherwise agreed, Buyer shall be responsible for all costs with respect to any loan obtained by Buyer, 
appraisal, title search, title insurance, recording the deed and for preparation and recording of all instruments required to secure the 
balance of the purchase price unpaid at Closing. Seller shall pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to 
perform Seller's obligations under this agreement, and for excise tax (revenue stamps) required by law. Seller shall pay at Closing 
$0.00 toward any of Buyer's expenses associated with the purchase of the Property, including any FHAIV A lender and inspection 
costs that Buyer is not permitted to pay, but excluding any portion disapproved by Buyer's lender. 

9. EVIDENCE OF TITLE: Seller agrees to use his best efforts to deliver to Buyer as soon as reasonably possible after the Effective 
Date of this contract, copies of all title information in possession of or available to Seller, including but not limited to: title insurance 
policies, attorney's opinions on title, surveys, covenants, deeds, notes and deeds of trust and easements relating to the Property. Seller 
authorizes (I) any attorney presently or previously representing Seller to release and disclose any title insurance policy in such 
attorney's file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys; and (2) the Property's title insurer or its agent to release and 
disclose all materials in the Property's title insurer's (or title insurer's agent's) file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and 
attorneys. 

Page 2 of5 

Buyer initials Seller initials __ _ 

NC BAR ASSOCIATION- NC Bar Form No. 12 Revised 7/2007 © 7/2007 This standard form has been approved jointly by: 
Norlh Carolina Bar Association- NC Bar Form No. 12 
North Carolina Association of Realtors®, Inc.- Standard Form 12MT 



10. LABOR AND MATERIAL: Seller shall furnish at Closing an affidavit and indemnification agreement in form satisfactory to 
Buyer showing that all labor and materials, if any, furnished to the Property within 120 days prior to the date of Closing have been 
paid for and agreeing to indemnify Buyer against all loss fi·om any cause or claim arising therefi·om. 

II. CLOSING: Closing shall be defined as the date and time of recording of the deed and shall be on or before October 31, 2011 (the 
"Closing Date"). All parties agree to execute any and all documents and papers necessary in connection with Closing and transfer of 
title on or before the Closing Date at a place and time designated by Buyer. The deed is to be made to: CRAVEN COUNTY. 

Absent agreement to the contrary in this contract or any subsequent modification thereto, the following terms shall apply: If either 
party is unable to close by the Closing Date, then provided that the party is acting in good faith and with reasonable diligence to 
proceed to closing, such party shall be entitled to reasonable delay of the Closing Date and shall give as much notice as possible to the 
non-delaying party and closing agent. In such event, however, either party for whom the Closing Date is delayed shall have a 
maximum often (10) days from the Closing Date, or any extension of the Closing Date agreed-upon in writing, in which to close 
without payment of interest. Following expiration of the ten-day period, the party not ready to close shall be responsible for paying to 
the other party (if ready, willing and able to close) interest on the purchase price at the rate of eight percent (8%) per annum accruing 
from the end of the ten-day period until closing occurs or the contract is terminated. Should the delay in closing continue for more 
than thirty (30) days from the last agreed-upon extension of the Closing Date, however, then the non-delaying party shall have the 
unilateral right to terminate the contract and receive the earnest money, but the right to such receipt shall not affect any other remedies 
available to the non-delaying party for such breach. 
CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION UNLESS 
PROVISION IS OTHERWISE MADE IN WRITING. 

12. POSSESSION: Unless otherwise provided herein, possession shall be delivered at Closing. No alterations, excavations, tree 
removal or other such activities may be done before possession is delivered. Seller shall remove, by the date possession is made 
available to the Buyer, all personal prope1iy which is not a part of the purchase and all garbage and debris from the Property. 

13. PROPERTY INSPECTION/INVESTIGATION (Choose ONLY ONE of the following Alternatives): 

1&1 ALTERNATIVE 1: 
(a) Soil, Water, Utilities And Environmental Contingency: This contract is contingent upon Buyer obtaining report(s) that (i) the 
soil is suitable for Buyer's Intended Use, (ii) utilities and water are available to the Property, (iii) there is no environmental 
contamination, law, rule or regulation that prohibits, restricts or limits Buyer's Intended Use, and (iv) there is no flood hazard that 
prohibits, restricts or limits Buyer's Intended Use (collectively the "Reports"). All costs and expenses of obtaining the Reports shall 
be borne by Buyer. Buyer shall use Buyer's best efforts to obtain such Reports. If the Reports cannot be obtained, Buyer may 
terminate this contract and the Earnest Money Deposit shall be refunded to Buyer. Buyer waives this condition unless Buyer provides 
written notice to Seller by October 15, 2011 that this condition cannot be satisfied, TIME BEING OF THE ESSENCE. 
(b) Sewer System (check only ONE): 
0 Buyer has investigated the costs and expenses to install the sewer system approved by the Improvement Permit attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and hereby approves and accepts said Improvement Permit. 
0 Seller represents that the system has been installed, which representation survives Closing, but makes no further representations as 
to the system. Buyer acknowledges receipt of the Improvement Permit attached hereto as Exhibit A. Buyer shall have the option of 
inspecting or obtaining, at Buyer's expense, inspection(s) to determine the condition of the system. If the system is not performing the 
function for which intended and is in need of immediate repair, Buyer may terminate this Contract and the Earnest Money Deposit 
shall be refunded to Buyer. Buyer waives this condition unless Buyer provides written notice to Seller by 

_______ that this condition cannot be satisfied, TIME BEING OF THE ESSENCE. 

0 This Contract is contingent upon 0 Buyer 0 Seller ("Responsible Party") obtaining an Improvement Permit or written evaluation 
from the County Health Department ("County") for a (check only ONE) 0 conventional or 0 other 
----::-;-:-~---:-:o:--:-::----:c-:----c--c ground absorption sewage system for a _____ bedroom home. All costs and 
expenses of obtaining such Permit or written evaluation shall be borne by Responsible Party unless otherwise agreed. In any event 
Seller, by no later than , shall be responsible for clearing that portion of the Property required by the 
County to perform its tests and/or inspections. Responsible Party shall use best efforts to obtain such Permit or written evaluation. If 
the Improvement Permit or written evaluation from the County cannot be obtained by (date), either party may 
terminate this Contract and the Earnest Money Deposit shall be refunded to Buyer. 

Page 3 of5 

Buyer initials Seller initials __ _ 

NC BAR ASSOCIATION- NC Bar Form No. 12 Revised 7/2007 © 7/2007 This standard form has been approved jointly by: 
North Carolina Bar Association- NC Bar Fonn No. 12 
North Carolina Association of Realtors®, Inc.- Standard Form 12-T 



IRI Buyer has investigated and approved the availability, costs and expenses to connect to a IRI public or 0 community sewer system. 
(c) CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION 
UNLESS PROVISION IS OTHERWISE MADE IN WRITING. 

0 ALTERNATIVE 2: (This Alternative applies ONLY if Alternative 2 is checked AND Buyer has paid the Option Fee.) 
(a) Property Investigation with Option to Terminate: In consideration of the sum set forth in paragraph 2(c) paid by Buyer to 
Seller (not Escrow Agent) and other valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged (the "Option Fee"), 
Buyer shall have the right to terminate this contract for any reason or no reason, whether related to the physical condition of the 
Property or otherwise, by delivering to Seller written notice of termination (the "Termination Notice") by 5:00 p.m. on 
----o-c:-c~-:---o:----;-=--,-;---:--' 20 __ , TIME BEING OF THE ESSENCE (the "Option Termination Date"). At any time 
prior to Closing, Buyer shall have the right to inspect the Property at Buyer's expense (Buyer is advised to have all inspections of the 
Property, including but not limited to those matters set forth in Alternative I, performed prior to the Option Termination Date). 
(b) Exercise of Option: If Buyer delivers the Termination Notice prior to the Option Termination Date, TIME BEING OF THE 

ESSENCE, this contract shall become null and void and all earnest monies received in connection herewith shall be refunded to 
Buyer; however, the Option Fee will not be refunded and shall be retained by Seller. If Buyer fails to deliver the Termination Notice 
to Seller prior to the Option Termination Date, then Buyer will be deemed to have accepted the Property in its physical condition 
existing as of the Option Termination Date; provided such acceptance shall not constitute a waiver of any rights Buyer has under 
paragraphs 3, 4 or 5 above. The Option Fee is not refundable, is not a part of any earnest monies, and will be credited to the purchase 
price at Closing. 
(c) CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION 
UNLESS PROVISION IS OTHERWISE MADE IN WRITING. 

14. RIGHT OF ENTRY, RESTORATION AND INDEMNITY: Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors shall have the right to enter 
upon the Property for the purpose of appraising and evaluating the Property, and performing the tests and inspections permitted in this 
contract. Buyer shall, at Buyer's expense, promptly repair any damage to the Property resulting from any activities of Buyer and Buyer's 
agents and contractors. Buyer will indemnifY and hold Seller harmless from all loss, damage, claims, suits or costs, which shall arise out of 
any contract, agreement, or injury to any person or property as a result of any activities of Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors 
relating to the Property. This indemnity shall survive this contract and any termination hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller shall 
be responsible for any loss, damage, claim, suit or cost arising out of pre-existing conditions of the Property and/or out of Seller's 
negligence or willful acts or omissions. 

15. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS: (CHECK ALL STANDARD ADDENDA THAT MAY BE A PART OF THIS 
CONTRACT, IF ANY, AND ATTACH HERETO. ITEMIZE ALL OTHER ADDENDA TO THIS CONTRACT, IF ANY, AND 
ATTACH HERETO. (NOTE: UNDER NORTH CAROLINA LAW, REAL ESTATE AGENTS ARE NOT PERMITTED TO 
DRAFT CONDITIONS OR CONTINGENCIES TO THIS CONTRACT.) 

0 Additional Provisions Addendum (Form 2A II-T) 
0 Back-Up Contract Addendum (Form 2A 1-T) 
0 Contingent Sale Addendum (Form 2A2-T) 
0 FHA/VA Financing Addendum (Form 2A4-T) 
0 OTHER: 

0 Loan Assumption Addendum (Form 2A6-T) 
0 Owners' Association Disclosure And Addendum (Form 2A 12-T) 
0 Seller Financing Addendum (Form 2A5-T) 

16. RISK OF LOSS: The risk of loss or damage by fire or other casualty prior to Closing shall be upon Seller. 

17. ASSIGNMENTS: This contract may not be assigned without the written consent of all parties, but if assigned by agreement, then 
this contract shall be binding on the assignee and his heirs and successors. 

18. TAX-DEFERRED EXCHANGE: In the event Buyer or Seller desires to effect a tax-deferred exchange in connection with the 
conveyance of the Property, Buyer and Seller agree to cooperate in effecting such exchange; provided, however, that the exchanging 
party shall be responsible for all additional costs associated with such exchange, and provided further, that a non-exchanging party 
shall not assume any additional liability with respect to such tax-deferred exchange. Seller and Buyer shall execute such additional 
documents, at no cost to the non-exchanging party, as shall be required to give effect to this provision. (NOTE: If Alternative 2 under 
paragraph 13 ofthis contract will apply, Seller should seek advice concerning the taxation of the Option Fee.) 

Page 4 of5 

Buyer initials Seller initials __ _ 

NC BAR ASSOCIATION- NC Bar Form No. 12 Revised 7/2007 © 7/2007 This standard form has been approved jointly by: 
North Carolina Bar Association- NC Bar Form No. 12 
North Carolina Association of Realtors®, Inc.- Standard Form l2~T 



19. PARTIES: This contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, i.e., Buyer and Seller and their heirs, 
successors and assigns. As used herein, words in the singular include the plural and the masculine includes the feminine and neuter 
genders, as appropriate. 

20. SURVIVAL: lfany provision herein contained which by its nature and effect is required to be observed, kept or performed after 
the Closing, it shall survive the Closing and remain binding upon and for the benefit of the parties hereto until fully observed, kept or 
performed. 

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This contract contains the entire agreement ofthe parties and there are no representations, inducements 
or other provisions other than those expressed herein. All changes, additions or deletions hereto must be in writing and signed by all 
parties. Nothing contained herein shall alter any agreement between a REALTOR® or broker and Seller or Buyer as contained in any 
listing agreement, buyer agency agreement, or any other agency agreement between them. 

22. NOTICE AND EXECUTION: Any notice or communication to be given to a party herein may be given to the patty or to such 
party's agent. Any written notice or communication in connection with the transaction contemplated by this contract may be given to 
a party or a party's agent by sending or transmitting it to any mailing address, e-mail address or fax number set forth in the "Notice 
Address" section below. This offer shall become a binding contract (the "Effective Date") when signed by both Buyer and Seller and 
such signing is communicated to the offering party. This contract may be signed in multiple originals, all of which together constitute 
one and the same instrument, and the parties adopt the word "SEAL" beside their signatures below. 

Buyer fil'l has 1:1 has not made an on-site personal examination of the Property prior to the making of this offer. 

Date: _______________ _ Date:-------------

Buyer _______________ (SEAL) Seller __________ ____:(SEAL) 

Date: ____ _ 

Buyer _______________ ___ 

BUYER NOTICE ADDRESS: 
406 Craven Street, New Bern, North Carolina 
New Bern, North Carolina 28560 

(SEAL) 

Date:----------------

Seller 

SELLER NOTICE ADDRESS: 
2175 Judge Fran Jamieson Way, Suite 202 
Viera, Florida 32940 

_ _____ (SEAL) 

Escrow Agent acknowledges receipt of the earnest money and agrees to hold and disburse the same in accordance with the 
terms hereof. 

Date, _______________ _ Firm: Sumrell, Sugg, Carmichael, Hicks & Hart, P.A. 

By: ________ ~~-~--------
(Signature) 

Page 5 of5 

Buyer initials ___ _ Seller initials __ _ 

91\\SERVER02\LSS\LSSDOCS\00027397.000.DOC 

NC BAR ASSOCIATION- NC Bar Form No. 12 Revised 7/2007 © 712007 This standard form has been approved jointly by: 
North Carolina Bar Association- NC Bar Form No. 12 
North Carolina Association of Realtors®, Inc.~ Standard Form 12-T 



= Street Centerlines 

Proposed Well 2 Site (1.22 ac.) 

New Well Location Area 

1 00' Well Setback 

Treatment Plant Site 


	Attachment #2
	Attachment #3.A
	Attachment #3.B
	Attachment #3.C
	Attachment #4
	June 30, 2011

	Attachment #5.A
	Attachment #5.B
	Attachment #7.C
	Attachment #8.B
	Agenda20110906.pdf
	Environmental Health/Healthy Homes – Program had unspent funds in the amount of $ 26,490 at the end of FY ’11.  Need to budget this carryover balance in FY ’12 for contract employee to instruct EPA required lead safety RRP class, to repair the XRF ...
	CARTS/Transportation – Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) funding for FY ‘12 is more than projected.  Need to budget a $35,441 increase in revenues and expenditures among Craven’s EDTAP (Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance Program...
	DSS Mandated Public Assistance – Additional funding of       $100,740 allocated to DSS for Crisis Intervention Program.  Funding is 100 % Federal requiring no County match.
	Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendments
	CURRENT DEFERRED APPOINTMENT(S):
	A. UAgricultural Advisory Board
	AUTHORIZATION: ULocal Ordinance
	LENGTH OF TERMS: U3 Years
	TERM (S) Ending:  Patrick Pritchard (non-participation)
	MEETING SCHEDULE: UAt the call of the ChairpersonU




